
Eliot Select Board Agenda   
Thursday April 27, 2023 5:30PM Town Hall 

Meeting Room and use of the OWL for Remote via ZOOM 
Amended April 26, 2023 

Call to order 
 
A. Roll Call 

Earth Day Proclamation for Girl Scout Troop #1411  
B. Pledge of Allegiance (led by Catie Towers)              
C. Public Comment  
D. Approval of Minutes: December 22, 2022 (added to packet 4/25/2023)  
E. Public Hearing(s);  

1. Organic Goods 276 Harold L. Dow Highway Medical Cannabis License (New) 
2. Arcanna LLC 291 Harold L Dow Highway Renewal Adult Use Cannabis 
3. Judley LLC 495 Harold L Dow Highway Medical Cannabis License (New) 

F. Department Head/Committee Report  
                       1. Town Manager’s Report (added 4/25/2023) 
 
G. Board and Committee Appointments/Resignations 
                       1.  Suzanne O’Connor application for appointment Full Member Planning Board 
                       2.  Suzanne O’Connor resignation Alternate Planning Board Member 
                       3.   June Hamel application for appointment Aging in Place          
                        
H. New Business; 

1. Water & Sewer Project Update (OPM Tighe & Bond, Project Engineer Underwood) 
2. Rochelle Bishop appointment Local Health Officer confirmation  

  
I. Old Business  
                        1      Boston Post Cane Policy Update 
             
J. Approval of Warrants:                         

1. Payroll Warrants  
#95   $49,467.50  
#99   $47,695.15 

                       2.  Accounts Payable Warrants  
                              #96   $980,842.63 
                              #97   $3,388.16 
                              #98   $50,515.14 
                                 
 K. Adjournment 

Join Zoom Mee�ng 
htps://us06web.zoom.us/j/81628088490?pwd=M0ltbWg4bnk5OTBtYkxubUFKcWtYZz09 
Mee�ng ID: 816 2808 8490 Passcode: 404675 
One tap mobile 
+13017158592,,81628088490#,,,,*404675# US (Washington DC)  
+13052241968,,81628088490#,,,,*404675# US 
Dial by your loca�on 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 305 224 1968 US 
Mee�ng ID: 816 2808 8490 
Passcode: 404675 
Find your local number: htps://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdNObrQiZO 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81628088490?pwd=M0ltbWg4bnk5OTBtYkxubUFKcWtYZz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdNObrQiZO




Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM  

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

1 

 

Quorum noted 1 
 2 
3:00 PM:  Meeting called to order by Vice Chair Widi. 3 
 4 
A. Roll Call: Mr. Donhauser, Mr. Widi, Mr. McPherson, Ms. Dow, and Mr. Shapleigh. 5 

 6 
Absent: Mr. McPherson (excused) 7 
 8 
B. Pledge of Allegiance recited 9 
 10 

Purple Heart Town Proclamation 11 
 12 

3:01 PM Mr. Sullivan said that we have been requested to make a proclamation to have 13 
Eliot, Maine be determined a Purple Heart Town: 14 
 15 
“Whereas, the Town of Eliot, Maine and our community have a great admiration 16 

and the utmost gratitude for all the men and women who have, and are, selflessly 17 
serving their country and this community in the Armed Forces; and 18 

 19 
Whereas, Veterans have paid the high price of freedom by leaving their families 20 
and communities and placing themselves in harm’s way for the good of all; and  21 

 22 
Whereas, the contributions and sacrifices of the men and women who served the 23 

Armed Forces have been vital in maintaining the freedoms and way of life 24 

enjoyed by our citizens; and 25 

 26 
Whereas, many men and women in uniform have given their lives while serving in 27 

the Armed Forces; and 28 
 29 
Whereas, citizens of our country have received the Purple Heart Medal as a result 30 

of being wounded while engaged in combat with an enemy force, construed as a 31 
singularly meritorious act of essential service; and 32 
 33 
Whereas, the Town of Eliot seeks to remember and recognize veterans who are 34 

recipients of the Purple Heart Medal; and 35 
 36 
Whereas, I proclaim the Town of Eliot, Maine to be a Purple Heart Town, 37 
honoring the service and sacrifice of our nation’s men and women in uniform, 38 
wounded or killed by the enemy while serving to protect our freedoms. 39 
 40 
Therefore, be it ordained by the Eliot Select Board as follows: 41 

 42 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

2 

 

Now, therefore, be it resolved on this 15th day of December, 2022, the Eliot Select 43 
Board supports the Town of Eliot becoming a Purple Heart Town in recognition 44 
of our community’s Purple Heart Medal recipients and all that served our 45 
country.” 46 
 47 

Mr. Widi said that, as a Purple Heart Town, we would put up plaques or signage. 48 
 49 

3:04 PM Mr. Sullivan said that, at each of the entrances, we put up a sign designating that 50 
we are a Purple Heart Town. We also put a commemorative plaque in Town Hall. 51 

  52 

Mr. Widi said that, unless anyone objects, I think it would be appropriate to 53 
organize some veteran’s groups to put together a proper ceremony. I don’t think 54 

during a meeting would be the best place for it. I think it should be a special 55 
occurrence. 56 
 57 
Select Board members agreed. 58 

 59 
Mr. Sullivan suggested waiting until spring for that. 60 

 61 
The SB agreed. 62 
 63 

Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Eliot Select Board 64 
proclaim the Town of Eliot a “Purple Heart Town” in honor of those men 65 

and women who have and are selflessly serving their country and this 66 

community in the Armed Forces. 67 

 68 
Roll Call Vote: 69 

 70 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 71 
Mr. Widi – Yes 72 

Ms. Dow – Yes 73 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 74 
 75 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 76 

 77 
F. Public Hearing: 78 

 79 
Mr. Widi held the public hearings next as they were scheduled for 3:00PM. 80 
 81 

3:06 PM 1. Kind Farms Confection, LLC Manufacturing License, 276 Dow Highway 82 
 83 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

3 

 

Mr. Widi opened the public hearing for a cannabis manufacturing facility license, 84 
operated by Kind Farm Confection, LLC (AMF 1326) at 276 Harold L. Dow 85 
Highway. 86 
 87 
Mr. Widi asked the Town Manager if this application is complete and consistent 88 

with all ordinances and laws to the best of your knowledge. 89 
 90 
Mr. Sullivan said that it is. 91 
 92 
There was no public comment. 93 

 94 
3:07 PM Public Hearing closed. 95 

 96 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board approve the 97 
Cannabis Manufacturing License for Kind Farm Confectioner, LLC (AMF 98 
1326) with a renewal date of December 15, 2023. 99 

 100 
Roll Call Vote: 101 

 102 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 103 
Mr. Widi – Yes 104 

Ms. Dow – Yes 105 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 106 

 107 

Unanimous vote to approve motion. 108 

 109 
NOTE: Mr. McPherson entered the meeting. 110 

 111 
3:07 PM 2. Sweet Dirt 2, LLC Renewal, 495 Dow Highway 112 

 113 

 Mr. Widi opened the public hearing for an annual renewal of the Cannabis 114 
Cultivation License Tier 4 for Sweet Dirt 2, LLC (ACD 597) at 495 Harold L. 115 
Dow Highway. 116 
 117 

Mr. Widi asked the Town Manager if this application is complete and consistent 118 
with all ordinances and laws to the best of your knowledge. 119 
 120 
Mr. Sullivan said that it is. 121 
 122 
There was no public comment. 123 
 124 

3:08 PM Public Hearing closed. 125 
 126 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

4 

 

Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board approve the 127 
annual renewal of the Adult Use Cannabis Cultivation Facility License Tier 4 128 
for Sweet Dirt 2, LLC (ACD 597) at 495 Harold L. Dow Highway, expiring 129 
December 15, 2023. 130 
 131 

Roll Call Vote: 132 
 133 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 134 
Mr. McPherson - Yes 135 
Mr. Widi – Yes 136 

Ms. Dow – Yes 137 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 138 

 139 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 140 
 141 

C. Public Comment: 142 

 143 
There were no public comments. 144 

 145 
D. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 146 

 147 

There were no minutes tonight. 148 
 149 

G.  Department Head/Committee Reports 150 

 151 

3:09 PM 1. Town Manager’s Report 152 
 153 

Mr. Sullivan said that my report is on the web site and also in this packet. The one 154 
thing I would like to follow up on is that we added a training on the last two 155 
Wednesdays from 7:30 AM to 9:30 AM. The first one was on Customer Service 156 

for all staff and was a wonderful seminar by a representative from the York 157 
County Community College. Then, this week we had Chris Burbank from the 158 
South Berwick Police Department put on a de-escalation training that was 159 
incredibly interesting. The psychology that goes into trying to lower people’s 160 

anxiety level, trying to get people to understand what we have to tell them. It was 161 
really well-done. The staff, I think, really enjoyed it. I really appreciate their 162 
attentiveness to this and buying into this training. It’s a really good experience 163 
and reflection of our wonderful staff. 164 
 165 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Eliot Select Board 166 
receive the Town Manager’s Report. 167 

 168 
Roll Call Vote: 169 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

5 

 

 170 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 171 
Mr. McPherson - Yes 172 
Mr. Widi – Yes 173 
Ms. Dow – Yes 174 

Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 175 
 176 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 177 
 178 

H. Board and Committee Appointments/Resignations:  179 

 180 
3:11 PM 1. Reginald Fowler Comprehensive Plan Update Committee 181 

 182 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. McPherson, that the Eliot Select Board 183 
appoint Reginald Fowler to the Eliot Comprehensive Plan Update 184 
Committee. 185 

 186 
DISCUSSION 187 

 188 
Mr. Sullivan said that he was nominated by the Budget Committee. The Chair 189 
confirmed. 190 

 191 
DISCUSSION ENDED 192 

 193 

Roll Call Vote: 194 

 195 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 196 

Mr. McPherson - Yes 197 
Mr. Widi – Yes 198 
Ms. Dow – Yes 199 

Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 200 
 201 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 202 
 203 

3:12 PM 2. Jenny Isler Aging-in-Place 204 
 205 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board appoint 206 
Jenny Isler to the Eliot Aging-in-Place Committee to a term ending June 30, 207 
2023. 208 
 209 
Roll Call Vote: 210 

 211 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 212 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

6 

 

Mr. McPherson - Yes 213 
Mr. Widi – Yes 214 
Ms. Dow – Yes 215 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 216 
 217 

Unanimous vote to approve motion. 218 
 219 
Mr. Sullivan said that, for clarification, in talking with the Town Clerk and 220 
looking at our ad hoc committees, technically an ad hoc committee serves the 221 
term of each Select Board. Each Select Board’s term is one year when you elect 222 

new members each year, whether it be one, two, or none if everyone returns, it’s 223 
considered a new term. So, ad hoc committees have to be consistent with that 224 

term. The Capital Planning Committee, the Aging-in-Place Committee, and the 225 
Agricultural & Food Security Committee each year will come in and be re-226 
appointed for a year. It’s a little bit of a change but it’s just to stay consistent with 227 
the rules around ad hoc committees. 228 

 229 
I. New Business:  230 

 231 
3:15 PM 1. Declaration of Official Intent; Bonding 232 

 233 

Mr. Sullivan said that this is something I’ve discussed with the Town attorney and 234 
will allows us, once the proceeds are available for the project, to recover any costs 235 

that we’ve used cash flow for in our budget. So, if we have money we’ve spent 236 

that we intended to come from a bonding, already, with this vote we’ll be able to 237 

recover that and replace it back into the general fund. It’s really an accounting 238 
procedure. 239 

 240 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Eliot Select Board 241 
approve the Declaration of Intent related to bond proceeds, as presented. 242 

 243 
Roll Call Vote: 244 
 245 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 246 

Mr. McPherson - Yes 247 
Mr. Widi – Yes 248 
Ms. Dow – Yes 249 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 250 
 251 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 252 
 253 

 254 
3:16 PM 2. Climate Resiliency Resolution 255 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

7 

 

 256 
Mr. Brubaker said that this is consideration of a declaration to join the 257 
Community Resiliency Partnership, a climate change program of the State. Lots 258 
of folks have, so far, been working on the Eliot effort to join this partnership. 259 
Thanks to the Conservation Commission as well as other boards, like the PB and 260 

Agricultural & Food Security Commission. I also want to acknowledge SMPDC 261 
for their work on this project, too. We had a workshop in October and we’ve done 262 
a self-assessment of our climate change vulnerabilities. The next step in this 263 
process is the resolution before you. I’m here to answer any questions. The 264 
request before you is for consideration of approval of that resolution. 265 

 266 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board approve the 267 

Climate Resiliency Resolution, as presented. 268 
 269 
Roll Call Vote: 270 
 271 

Mr. Donhauser – Yes 272 
Mr. McPherson - Yes 273 

Mr. Widi – Yes 274 
Ms. Dow – Yes 275 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 276 

 277 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 278 

 279 

3:18 PM 3. State and Beech Active Transportation Engineering Services 280 

 281 
Mr. Brubaker said that this is to consider approval of a signed contract with 282 

Stantec Consulting Service to begin design of active transportation and walking & 283 
bicycling facilities on State Road and Beech Road. Travis _______ from Stantec 284 
is on Zoom right now in case you have any questions. Otherwise, I believe you 285 

have a motion and I’d be happy to answer any questions about this project and 286 
about the contract. 287 
 288 
Mr. Widi said that I don’t have any questions. I think it’s a good project. 289 

 290 
Mr. Shapleigh said that I don’t see a price tag. 291 
 292 
Mr. Brubaker said that the maximum not-to-exceed amount foe the base fee is 293 
$150,583.29. 294 
 295 
Mr. Widi said that it is my understanding that this is of the ARPA money that we 296 

set aside for this. 297 
 298 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

8 

 

Mr. Brubaker said that it is. There is also an additional optional amount of $9, 607 299 
approximately. 300 
 301 
Ms. Dow said that I looked at these numbers 1-5, asking if this design covers all 302 
five or just the first, State Road Grange to Old Road. I see that there are a few 303 

different sections. 304 
 305 
Mr. Brubaker said that it covers all five sections but it’s only through 10% plans. 306 
So, it’s only the very beginning of the design process. We continue to look at 307 
external funding and budget options for continuing the design process after that, 308 

but this will get us going. 309 
 310 

Mr. Widi said that we will have a concept to show people. 311 
 312 
Mr. Brubaker said that, once notice to proceed is given, they have provided a 313 
schedule in their proposal. We’re looking at this portion of the process going 314 

through to about mid-next year. 315 
 316 

3:21 PM Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Eliot Select Board 317 
approve the proposal from Stantec Engineering for the Active 318 
Transportation Project and authorize the Town Manager to execute 319 

agreements necessary on behalf of the Eliot Select Board. 320 
 321 

Roll Call Vote: 322 

 323 

Mr. Donhauser – Yes 324 
Mr. McPherson - Yes 325 

Mr. Widi – Yes 326 
Ms. Dow – Yes 327 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 328 

 329 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 330 
 331 
Mr. Brubaker said that they were selected through a qualifications-based 332 

procurement process consistent with DOT’s procedures. They were the only 333 
proposal, though, so I don’t know if w technically need a waiver of the 3-bid rule. 334 
It was publicly advertised so there was plenty of opportunity for firms to propose. 335 
We just happened to only get one proposal. 336 
 337 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board waive the 3-338 
bid rule for the Active Transportation Project. 339 

 340 
Roll Call Vote: 341 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

9 

 

 342 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 343 
Mr. McPherson - Yes 344 
Mr. Widi – Yes 345 
Ms. Dow – Yes 346 

Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 347 
 348 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 349 
 350 

J. Old Business: 351 

 352 
3:22 PM 1. FY24 Budget Update 353 

 354 
Mr. Sullivan said that we continue to work on the budget. Again, thank Kristin 355 
McNulty for all her hard work. It’s going to be an interesting cycle because 356 
you’re going to look at the budget quite differently. There are some areas we’ve 357 

tried to consolidate expenditures where it makes more sense. Obviously, the 358 
budget is going to be higher. Costs are going up. We’re trying to work to mute 359 

that as much as is possible. One of the areas you’ll see is that there’s a number of 360 
large requests for outside agencies that are looking for funding. Some of them are 361 
probably one-time requests. Others are the ones you see every year. That is 362 

something we should look very closely at. At previous meetings I’ve talked about 363 
some of the changes and consolidations we’re trying to accomplish by bringing 364 

different things together. For instance, people that have cell phones and tablets, 365 

the cost of those were kind of dispersed in different places in different 366 

departments and we want to consolidate all that in one Communications area. We 367 
have put most of the IT in one centralized budget under Administration. And then, 368 

there are some specialty departments. Land Use happens to be one of them where 369 
we’ve taken a portion of the IT that is primarily for that department. There used to 370 
be a system where everybody had a little bit of IT and we took a percentage from 371 

this department, a percentage from that department, and it was a math exercise. 372 
So, it makes sense to bring it all together. Everyone is using most of these 373 
platforms, whether it be TRIO or Microsoft 365 or the services we get from 374 
Stellar. Those are all centralized costs so we tried to put them in the budget as 375 

such. We’re really attempting to try to make it much easier to read the budget. 376 
Same thing is true on the revenue side. For instance, there were 17 or 18 object 377 
codes for the ECSD. There were things like Kids Play, Pee Wee Play, that had 378 
their own code. We had Adult Athletics, Adult Activities, Senior Citizen. So, we 379 
try to make it easier to understand and, then, we’re putting all Adults here, Youth 380 
here, little things like that. They don’t seem very complicated from the outside but 381 
doing that from the inside is proving to be a real challenge. Ms. McNulty is really 382 

coming along. We’re hoping that we’ll have the budget late next week or mid-383 
week in the following week up on the web and mailed to each one of you and 384 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

10 

 

each member of the Budget Committee. I did send to all of you and, through the 385 
Chair, the Budget Committee, the requests for outside agencies, primarily some 386 
but not all non-profits. Any input you or the Budget Committee can give me 387 
would be appreciated. I struggle a little bit about trying to make decisions based 388 
on what’s best for Eliot in those terms. You know it better than I. You have a long 389 

history. So, any input I can get on that I would greatly appreciate. 390 
 391 

3:27 PM Ms. Dow said that that email you sent didn’t actually have an attachment that 392 
listed the agencies requesting. I will ask you to send it again. 393 
 394 

Mr. Sullivan said okay. 395 
 396 

Mr. (Gene) Wypyski, Creek Crossing, also on the Budget Committee. At our 397 
meeting yesterday we brought that up as a topical issue. The recommendation, 398 
which wasn’t formalized, but the topic was along the lines that we need a policy 399 
in our Town as far as what we, as a Town, want to donate. That topic had a lot of 400 

conversation. I think the two issues that were apparent to me is that we’ve got 401 
generic charities looking to the towns for support and then we’ve got non-402 

profits/charities coming to the Town that ostensibly serve our Townspeople. In 403 
the context of the AIP, there was a group (Southern Maine Aging Agency) and I 404 
know I’ve been approached by Footprints with the theme that we serve your 405 

Townspeople, and here’s who they are, so we should get to the front of the line 406 
for anything you might give a non-profit. In my opinion, everyone is a 501 c3 but 407 

they’re not all created equal as far as, perhaps, what the Town might want to 408 

consider doing for them, or not. So, the issue really could be that we need a 409 

policy, or some kind of guidance, at a very high level to guide these requests. 410 
They are coming at us and it’s hard to do good but in the context of what the 411 

citizens might prefer or not prefer to do. 412 
 413 

3:29 PM Mr. Sullivan said that I think that’s a great point. I think even for the agencies and 414 

non-profits, if there were some guidelines available for them, they could put their 415 
request in within those guidelines of what we’re looking for. 416 
 417 
Mr. Widi asked if Mr. Sullivan would be willing to draft something of what you 418 

think would be a proper way to approach this moving forward. Something we can 419 
review at our next meeting on January 12th and then we can give you some input. 420 
Maybe we punt it over to the Budget Committee and get some input there. I think 421 
that would be appropriate because they have a say in the budget stuff, as well. 422 
 423 

3:30 PM Mr. Sullivan said yes. I think the main thing, aside from what the need is, is trying 424 
to determine what’s a reasonable percentage portion of your budget to be put 425 

towards this. Whatever it might be, I’ll make a recommendation on that just so 426 
you can keep all requests within that context. Similar to how you constructed the 427 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

11 

 

Senior Tax Abatement Program. There is structure to how much you are giving 428 
out each year. 429 
 430 
Mr. Widi suggested guidelines around prioritization, as well. I’m certainly 431 
sympathetic to if they are actually serving our community, like something like 432 

Footprints would be at the top of the line and the ones that are kind-of, maybe, 433 
sort-of serves us, those are maybe more towards the bottom. That’s just my 434 
opinion. 435 
 436 

3:31 PM 2. TA Evaluation 437 

 438 
Mr. Widi said that we are going to table that until the next meeting because we do 439 

a lot of that in executive session then release a report based on the SB’s 440 
evaluations; that that will be public but our evaluations will be in executive 441 
session. That is usually best when everybody is here. 442 
 443 

3:32 PM 3. Comp Plan By-laws 444 
 445 

These by-laws have been approved by the Comp Plan Update Committee. 446 
 447 
Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board endorse the 448 

Comprehensive Plan Committee By-laws, as presented by the 449 
Comprehensive Plan Update Ad-hoc Committee. 450 

 451 

Roll Call Vote: 452 

 453 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 454 

Mr. McPherson - Yes 455 
Mr. Widi – Yes 456 
Ms. Dow – Yes 457 

Mr. Shapleigh 458 
 459 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 460 

 461 

K. Approval of Warrant(s): 462 
 463 
3:33 PM Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Select Board approve A/P 464 

Warrant #46 in the amount of $69,891.38, dated November 10, 2022; A/P 465 
Warrant #48 in the amount of $953,364.67, dated November 17, 2022; A/P 466 
Warrant #50 in the amount of $39,768.97, dated November 22 2022; A/P 467 
Warrant #51 in the amount of $2,599.33, dated November 29, 2022; A/P 468 

Warrant #53 in the amount of $197,187.20, dated December 1, 2022; A/P 469 
Warrant #55 in the amount of $1,022,339.75, dated December 8, 2022. 470 



Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING 

December 15, 2022 3:00PM (continued) 

Town Hall/Hybrid 
 

12 

 

 471 
Roll Call Vote: 472 
 473 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 474 
Mr. McPherson - Yes 475 

Mr. Widi – Yes 476 
Ms. Dow – Yes 477 
Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 478 
 479 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 480 

 481 
Mr. Sullivan said that I would just like to remind people that we will be closed 482 

December 26th and January 2, 2023. 483 
 484 

L. Adjourn 485 
 486 

3:35 PM Mr. McPherson moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Select Board adjourn. 487 
 488 

Roll Call Vote: 489 
 490 
Mr. Donhauser – Yes 491 

Mr. McPherson - Yes 492 
Mr. Widi – Yes 493 

Ms. Dow – Yes 494 

Mr. Shapleigh - Yes 495 

 496 
Unanimous vote to approve motion. 497 

 498 
The meeting adjourned at 3:36 PM.  499 
 500 

Respectfully submitted, 501 
 502 
Ellen Lemire, Recording Secretary 503 
 504 
 505 
 506 

________________________________ 507 

Mr. Robert McPherson, Secretary 508 
 509 
Date approved: 510 

___________________ 511 
 512 
 513 









Eliot Town Manager Report 
April 26, 2023 

Submitted by 
Michael J. Sullivan to the Eliot Selectboard 

 
Honorable Select Board, this is an abridged accounting of some of the projects and issues I and 
the dedicated municipal staff have been working on lately for the benefit of the Town of Eliot 
and its citizens. 
 
Consolidated Communications. 
We are hopeful that we are dangerously close to completing the installation of the new phone 
system in Town Hall, Public Works and Police Department.  As you may be aware this project 
was agreed to October 2018.  To say this has been a slow roll would be credible, to say the 
least. 
 
The installation has caused a great deal of anxiety, frustration and confusion amongst staff.  As 
a voice over IP system, it will “eventually” provide a number of enhancements for serving the 
public.  Due to the fact it is an internet-based telecommunications system there also were 
significant interruptions in email and other functions reliant on the internet.  We apologize for 
any missed or dropped calls or emails over the last couple of weeks it was a trying time. 
 
We will be having a training mid-May which will hopefully allow us to exercise all the gremlins 
out of the system and learn more about the tools we may utilize. 
 
Water and Sewer Extension Project. 

The work has begun on the Water and Sewer Extension Project.  Most 
of the work being performed presently is on Beech Road and State 
Road as Defelice the contractor on the project is presently drilling test 
holes to make a ledge determination for the area.  As most residents 
know there is a ton of rock looming just below the surface, some 
outcroppings not even below the surface. 
 
Anyone can get regular updates by send and email request to 
rt236project@eliotme.org or going to the following link 
https://www.eliotmaine.org/home/news/eliot-water-sewer-

extension-project-public-information  
 
I will also try to add information in my Town Manager Reports as often as possible. We also will 
hold some public sessions as the project progresses.  The OPM has been taking on much of the 
oversight as Town Hall simply does not have the capacity or the expertise for that function. 
Thank you for your collective patience as it will be a “Detour Summer”. 
 

mailto:rt236project@eliotme.org
https://www.eliotmaine.org/home/news/eliot-water-sewer-extension-project-public-information
https://www.eliotmaine.org/home/news/eliot-water-sewer-extension-project-public-information


I will continue to attend weekly meetings with the OPM for a in-depth overview of project 
progress  
 
Performance Based Evaluations. 
As the end of the fiscal year nears, I have begun, a little late, to review the PBE’s of a number of 
employees and managers where appropriate have started the second of the Bi-annual review of 
their staff. 
 
These evaluations are intended to ensure managers meet with all employees to specifically 
discuss projects and progress and build employee morale.  It is really amazing to me as Town 
Manager just how many initiatives and projects have been completed, rolling along or still 
being planned by departments and employees.  
 
Managing the water and sewer extension project, new software, new phones (whether we 
want them or not), automating payroll, developing new approaches to services we provide, the 
list is long to say the least.  I am very lucky to work with such a skilled team of professionals. 
 
Murray-Rowe Park Clean-up. 
I would like to thank the extra effort applied by the Public Works under the direction of 
Foreman Jim Roy and our consultant Norm Albert.  I realize that the more cynical will say “Well 
that is their job” and to some extent that is true.  However, bringing focus and extra effort is 
laudable, this is one of those cases. 
 
We are hoping softball, baseball and soccer will be able to return for 2023, but there is more 
investment needed.  That investment will need to be comprised of seat equity and funding.  
Murray Rowe needs to become another gem in the park system in Eliot.  This focus should not 
be at the cost of Frost Tufts, Boat Basin or Hammond Park. The directive is to make sure we are 
paying attention and advocating for investment in the public parks of Eliot. 
 
Thank you to the Eliot/South Berwick/Berwick Girl Scout Troop for their Earth Day clean-up 
efforts at the Boat Basin recently.  You definitely deserve a badge! 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 
Michael J. Sullivan 
Town of Eliot, Manager 
 
 
 
 
 


















































	Eliot Select Board Agenda April 27 2023.pdf
	Agenda & Packet 04-27-23
	Minutes SB12152022
	Agenda & Packet 04-27-23
	Eliot Town Manager Report April 26 2023
	Agenda & Packet 04-27-23

